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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ EXAMINATION REPORT ON
RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To,

The Board of Directors,

BMW VENTURES LIMITED
1st Floor, Mona Cinema Complex,
East Gandhi Maidan,

Patna Bihar - 800004 In

Dear Sirs/Madams,

1. We have examined the attached Restated Financial Statement of BMW VENTURES LIMITED, (the
“Company™ or the “Issuer”), comprising the Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31 , 2025,
March 31, 2024 and March 31 , 2023, the Restated Statement of Profit and Loss (incl uding Other Comprehensive
Income), Restated Statement of Changes in Equity and Restated Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended
March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, and the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and
other explanatory information (collectively, the ‘Restated Financial Information’), as approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meeting held on August 19, 2025 for the purpose of inclusion in the Red Herring
Prospectus (“RHP”) prepared by the Company in connection with its proposed Initial Public Offer of equity shares
(“IPO™) prepared in terms of the requirements of:

a) Section 26 of Part I of Chapter 111 of the Companies Act 2013 (the "Act");

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018, as amended ("ICDR Regulations"); and

¢) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) (as amended) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”), (the “Guidance Note™).

Management's Responsibility for the Restated Summary Statements

2. The preparation of the Restated Summary Statements, which are to be included in the RHP to be filed with
SEBI. ROC and the Stock Exchanges in connection with the proposed IPO is the responsibility of the Management
of the Company. The Restated Summary Statements have been prepared by the Management of the Company on
the basis of preparation, as stated in Note 2 to the Restated Summary Statements. The Management's
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining adequate internal control relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Restated Summary Statements. The Management is also responsible for
identifying and ensuring that the Company complies with the Act, ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note.

Auditors' Responsibilities
3. We have examined such Restated Summary Statements taking into consideration:

a) The terms of reference and terms of our engagement agreed with you vide our engagement letter dated
March 18, 2025, requesting us to carry out the assignment, in connection with the proposed IPO of the
Company;

b) The Guidance Note also requires that we comply with ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics Issued by
ICAL

c¢) Concepts of test checks and materiality to obtain reasonable assurance based on the verification of evidence
supporting the Restated Summary Statements; and

d) The requirements of Section 26 of the Act and the ICDR Regulations. Our work was performed solely to
assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your compliance with the Act, the ICDR Regulations
and the Guidance Note in connection with the Offer.

4. These Restated Summary Statements have been compiled by the management of the Company from:

a) Audited Financial Statements of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024
and March 31, 2023 which were prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (referred to as
“Ind AS™) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)



A D V & AS S OCIATES 807, Metroplex, 14 B Wing

; Malad west, Offlink Road
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Mindspace complex,
Mumbai - 400064

Tel : 9029059911
INDIA

Email : advassociates@gmail.com

Rules 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, at the relevant time,
which have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on August 19, 2025, August 29,
2024 and August 31, 2023 Respectively.

5. For the purpose of our examination, we have relied on:

a) Independent Auditors’ report issued by us, on the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company as at and for
the period ended March 31, 2025 dated August 19, 2025, on the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company
as at and for the period ended March 31, 2024 dated August 29, 2024 and on the Ind AS Financial Statements
of the Company as at and for the period ended March 31, 2023 dated August 31, 2025.

The Ind AS and restatement adjustments made to such financial statements (referred to in 4 (a) above) to comply
with Ind AS and the basis set out in Note 2 to the Restated Financial Information, have been audited by us.

6. Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that
Restated Summary Statements of the Company -

i. have been prepared after incorporating adjustments for the changes in accounting policies, material errors and
regrouping/reclassifications retrospectively in the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 to
reflect the same accounting treatment as per the accounting policies and grouping / classifications, to the extent
applicable followed as at and for the fiscal year ended March 3 1,2025;

ii. does not contain any qualification requiring adjustments,
iii. have been prepared in accordance with the Act, ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note.

7. These Restated Financial Information do not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the

respective dates for the Ind AS Financial Statements and Audited Financial Statements mentioned in the
paragraph 4 above.

8. This report should not in any way be construed as a reissuance or re-dating of any of the previous audit reports

issued by us, nor should this report be construed as a new opinion on any of the financial statements referred to
herein.

9. We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of the
report.

10. Our report is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors for inclusion in the RHP to be filed with
SEBI, ROC and the Stock Exchanges in connection with the proposed Offer. Our report should not be used,
referred to, or distributed for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any

duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come.

1. We, M/s A D V & Associates, Chartered Accountants have been subjected to the peer review process of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and holds the peer review certificate dated 6 February, 2025
valid till 29 February 2028. We confirm that there is no express refusal by the peer review board of ICAI to renew
the certificate and the process to renew the peer review certificate has been initiated by us.

M/s A DV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 128045W

CA Pratik Kabra

Partner

M. No. 611401

UDIN: 25611401BMHWSY5543
Date: 27" August, 2025

Place: Patna



BMW VENTURES LIMITED
Address : 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 800004
CIN:U25111BR1994PLC006131
Balance Sheet as on as at 31st March, 2025
(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

e e Asat Asat Baist
: RaIcAlar b Notes 31st March 2025 31stMarch 2024  31st March 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets :
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4(a) 11,321.72 8,039.12 6,854.46
(b} Capital Work In Progress 4(b) 52.50 1,624.72 130.96
{c) Right of Use Assets 4a) = g 420.38
{d} Investment Properties 5 2,655.21 2,508.34 2,477.87
(e} Intangible Assets 4a) 25.78 36.35 46.91
(fl Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Others Financial Assets 6 190.82 137.00 526.64
(g} Other Non Current Assets 7 192.74 258.17 562.53
Total Non-Current Assets 14,438.76 _12,604.69 11,019.75
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 8 30,175.51 32,067.46 23,450.08
(b) Financial Assets
(i} Investments 9 356.54 175.34 121.44
(il) Trade Receivables 10 16,411.18 14,100.29 10,993.34
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 1,243.43 52.86 27.94
liv) Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 37861 387,74 -
(v) Loans and advances 13 2,57431 2,672.43 48.46
(vi) Other financials assets
(e} Other Current Assets 14 2,031.07 2,530.43 2,389.85
(d} Income Tax Assets (net) 15¢) - 23.55 141.86
Total Current Assets 53,170.64 52,010.10 37,181.97
Total ASSETS 67,609.40 64,614.79 48,201.72
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 16 6,331.50 6,331.50 1,582.88
{b) Other Equity 17 14,680.28 12,339.31 14,064.82
Total EQUITY 21,011.78 18,670.81 15,647.70
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 3,119.20 4,503.96 4,145.49
(i) Lease Liabilities 19 - - 368.38
iii) Other Financial Liabilities 20 35.00 20.00 25.00
(b) Provisions 21 60.04 67.34 87.18
(c} Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 15b) 520.51 313.40 208.23
Total Non-Current Liabilities : - 3,73475 4,904.70 - 4,834.29
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 39,719.35 35,025.70 24,212.95
(i) Lease Liabilities 23 5 - 60.00
(iii) Trade Payables 24
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - -
enterprises; and
(8) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 30.83 2,387.48 527.77
enterprises and small enterprises.
{iv) Other Financial Liabilities 25 1,462.73 595.66 1,781.61
(b] Other Current Liabilities 26 1,615.11 2,571.92 1,070.59
(c) Provisions 27 9.39 58.51 43.76
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 15d) 21.46 - 23.06
Total Current Liabilities 42,862.86 41,039.27 27,719.74
Total EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 67,609.40 6@1&.79 48,201.72
Significant accounting policies & key accounting estimates & judgements 1-3
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 1-28
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
As per our Report of even date annexed For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For A D V & ASSOCIATES BMW VENTURES LIMI

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.-128045W

L gl

Y
{7/ y Kumar Kishorepuria Nitin Kishorepuria
Director Managing Director

ratik Kabra DIN:-00626283 DIN:- DOB2ZE3TT

Partner
Membership No. : 611401 ’ Q . - 9{0‘ v
UDIN:25611401BMHWSY5543 h"- M h I—M Q 3 3:’ ‘_P
Place:- Patna MN Qa % ol -
Date:-27-08-2025 Ruchika Maheshwari Birendra Yadav

Company Secretary Chief Financial officer

PAN: CTLPM1352F PAN:AJIPKTI25P




BMW VENTURES LIMITED
Address ; 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 800004
CIN:U25111BR1994PLCO06131
statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended as on 31st March, 2025
{Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

L Period ended Period ended Year ended
Pauchers NOWS  3istMarch202s  31stMarch 202 315t March 2023
INCOMES
Revenue From Cperations 28 2,06,203.52 1,93,815.63 2,01,509.72
Other Income 29 529.65 383.52 302.51
Total INCOME 2,06,733.21 1,94,203.15 2,01,812.23
EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 30 793.47 1,780.50 €62.11
Purchase of stock in Trade 31 1,83,289.05 1,83,847.15 1,87.426.61
Changes in Inventaries & Stock-in Trade a2 1,933.35 (8,575.21) [11,296.27)
Employee Benefit Expenses 33 2,061.74 2,014.64 1,902.14
Finance Costs 34 3,778.75 2,793.27 208515
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 5 459.09 419,69 395.51
Other Expensss 36 9,916.30 7,880.40 6,333.05
Total EXPENSES ! 2,02,271.74 1,90,166.43 1,97,488.29
Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax 4,461.46 4,036.70 4,323.94
Exceptional ltems - - -
Profit/{loss) before Tax 4,461.46 4,036.70 4,323.94
Tax Expense
Current Tax 15a) 974.82 947.95 1,045.83
Deferred Tax 204.30 95.22 12.24
Total Tax Expense 1,179.13 1,043.16 1,058.08
Profit for the period 3,282.33 2,993.54 3,265.86
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 11.17 39.53 (66.51)
Incorne tax relating to re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans {2.81) {5.95) 16.74
Total Other Comprehensive Income 8.36 29.58 (49.77)
Total Comprehensive Income 3,290.69 3,023.12 3,216.09
Earnings Per Share (In Rs) 37
(1) Basic 5.18 473 5.16
{2) Diluted 5.18 4.73 5.16
Significant accounting policies & key accounting estimates & judgements 13
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 1-48

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in cur report of even date

As per our Report of even date annexed
For A D V & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.-128045W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
BMW VENTURES LIMITED

/;} %W?w(/u O

=\ L~
hy Bijay kumar Kishorepuria Nitin Kishore, v
Director Managing Director
ratik Kabra DIN:-00626283 DIN:- 00626377
Partner

Membership No. : 611401
UDIN:25611401BMHWSY5543
Place:- Patna
Date:-27-08-2025

Ruchiles  Maheahwoasa

Ruchika Maheshwari
Company Secretary
PAN: CTLPM1352F

P .

Birendra Yadav
Chief Financial officer
PAN:AJIPK7925P




BMW VENTURES LIMITED

Address : 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 800004

CIN:U25111BR1934PLCO06131

Statement of Cash Flows as at 31st March, 2025

[Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Period ended Period ended . Yearended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 4,461.46 4,036.70 432394
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense 499.09 41569 395.51
Finance Costs 3,778.75 2,799.27 2,065.15
Interest Income [123.66) (119.75) [89.79)
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment's 1.25 - (2.28)
Fair Value gain and loss (22.11) (1.60) {66.51)
Operating profit before working capital changes 8,594.79 7,134.30 6,626.02
Adjustments for:
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories 1,891.95 (8,608.38) (11,028.79)
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans 98.12 (2,623.97) 36.65
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables 12,310.89) (3,106.95) (226.46)
Decrease/{Increase) in Other Financial Assets (14.50) 25.01 (5.51)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other assets 565.7¢ 162.78 (866.69)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (2,356.65) 1,859.71 231.89
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 482.06 (790.95) (1,654.89)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities (952.81) 1,501.33 (474.33)
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (45.26) (5.08) 53.37
Cash flow from operating activities post working capital changes 5,952.61 (4,452.20) (7,308.75)
Direct taxes -~ (929.81) (852,69) (1,041.72)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 5,022.80 (5,304.89) (8,350.46)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment (2,345.77) (2,697.63) (2,108.84)
Sale of Property Plant and Equipment (1.25) - 8.91
Investment in Fixed Deposits (30.19) (23.11) 2.89
Interest received 123.66 119.75 89.79
Increasef{Decrease) in Investment (159.09) (50.18) (113.10)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (2,412.64) {2,651.17) (2,120.35)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Borrowings 3,308.89 11,171.22 12,029.85
Interest paid (3,778.75) (2,799.27) (2,065.15)
Repayment of finance lease obligation - {390.97) (52.45)
Dividend Paid (949.73) - -
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (1,419.59) 7,980.98 9,912.25
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 1,190.57 _ 2492 (558.56)
Cash and cash equivalents as at begaining of the Period 29.80 4.88 563.44
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the Period 1,220.36 29.80 4.88
Notes

1. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with ‘Indirect method’ as set out in Ind AS
the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules issued thersunder.

- 7 - "Statement of Cash Flows’, as notified under Section 133 of

Cash and Cash Equivalents e asat .

; ‘31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Cash on hand 5.98 13.95 13.62
Balances with banks 1237.44 3891 14.32
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the Period 1,233.43 52.86 27.94

This is the Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date

As per our Report of even date annexed
For A D V & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.-128045W l'gﬁ \7 46/?’7) ré/(/ %,

Bijay Kumar Kishorepuria
Director
DIN:-00626283

Pratik Kabra

Partner

Membership No. : 611401 R'«(CMKA Mah“hw W @{ofrﬂv‘:e-

UDIN:25611401BMHWSY5543

Place:- Patna Ruchika Maheshwari

Date:-27-08-2025 Company Secretary
PAN: CTLPM1352F

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

BMW VENTURES LIMITED
’

Managing Director
DIN:- 00626377

Birendra Yadav
Chief Financial officer
PAN:AJIPK7925P
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BMW VENTURES LIMITED
Address ; 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 800004
CIN:U25111BR1994PLCO0B131
Schedules forming part of the financial statements
(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Corporate information

BMW Ventures Limited is a public company domiciled in India, eriginally incorporated on October 07, 1594 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and currently
governed by the Companies Act, 2013, The Company is engaged in a diversified business pertfolio which includes trading of iron and steel products, primarily sourced from Tata
Steel, distribution of tractors of John Deere India in the state of Bihar also manufacturing of PVC pipes, Pre Engineering Building & Railway Griders and providing rental services
of construction equipments.

Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act").

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Director on August 27, 2025,

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs ('], as per the
requirements of Schedule |1l of the Act, unless otherwise stated,

b) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value as required
under relevant ind AS.

and

c) Significant accounting |

The preparation of the company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
autcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in future periods affected.

d) Critical accounting and ptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company, Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

i, Taxes

Deferred tax assets are reccgnised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.

ii. Employee benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, other pest-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuanal valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its leng-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

iii. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal, contractor and other claims. By their nature,
contingencies will be resolved anly when one or maore uncertain future events occur or fail to occur, The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies
inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

iv. Property Plant and Equipment

Useful life and residual values are determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at each financial year end. The |ife is based on historical
experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes
or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the product or service output of the asset.




BMW VENTURES LIMITED
Address : 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 800004
CIN:U25111BR1994PLC0ODR131
Schedules forming part of the financial statements
(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

3 Significant accounting policies
3.1 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTS

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Freehold land is measured at cost and
is not depreciated.

Cost comprises purchase price, non recoverable taxes and duties, labour cost, direct overhead for self constructed assets, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful life)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any,

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided using written down value method using rates determined based on management's assessment of useful
economic life of the asset.

Followings are the estimated useful life of various category of assets used which are aligned with useful life defined in schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 :

Office Building 30 Years
Plant & Machinary 15 Years
Furniture & Fixture 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Computers 3 Years
Solar 35 Years

The residual values, useful life and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Derecognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset [calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is de-recognized.

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in progress. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-
progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use,

3.2 Investment Property

Investment property is property (land or building, or part of a building, or beth) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for:
> use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
=sale in the ordinary course of business.

Recognition and Measurement
Investment property is initially recognised at cost, including transaction costs. The cost of a self-constructed investment property comprises the cost of materials, direct labour,
and other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, in accordance with Ind AS 16 —
Property, Plant and Equipment.

Depreciation
Depreciation on investment property is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives prescribed in Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013, or based on
technical assessment where applicable.

Retirement or Disposal
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal, Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of derecognition.

Transfers
Transfers to, or from, investment property are made when there is a change in use, evidenced by c ement or cessation of owner-occupation, or commencement of
development with a view to sale.

3.3 LEASES

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or cantain a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether:

* The contract involves the use of an identified asset —this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the
capacity of a

physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substation right, then the asset is not identified;

* The Company has the right to substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

= The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and
for what purposes the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the
use of the asset if either:

= The Company has the right to operate the asset; or

= The Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpaoses it will be used.
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As a practical expedient, Ind AS 116 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single
arrangement. The Company has not used this practical expedient. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease compaonent, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises of the
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and estimated dilapidation
costs, less any lease incentives received. The right-of asset is sub tly amortised using the straight-line method over the shorter of the useful life of the leased assetor
the period of lease. If ownership of the leased asset is automatically transferred at the end of the |ease term or the exercise of a purchase option 15 reflected in the |ease
payments, the right-of-use asset is amortised on a straight line basis over the expected useful life of the leased asset.

The |ease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at commencement date, discounted using, the Company's incremental
borrowing rate, The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Itis re measured when there is a change in future lease payments.

Lease payments include fixed payments, L.e. amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantee, the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payment of penalties for terminating the |ease if the lease term considered reflects that the Company shall exercise
termination option. The Company also recognises a right of use asset which comprises of amount of initial measurement of the |ease liability, any initial direct cost incurred by
the Company and estimated dilapidation costs.

Payment made towards short term leases (leases for which non-cancellable term is 12 months or lesser) and low value assets (lease of assets worth less than "0.03 crore) are
recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss as rental expenses over the tenor of such leases,

The following amounts are included in the Balance Sheet : Asat . Aset Asat

31t March 2025 31stMarch 2024 315t March 2023
Mon current - w 36838
Current - - 60.00
- - ! 42838
The following amounts are recognised in the stat t of profit
S s il For Perlod ended on  For Perlod ended on For Period ended on
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Interest Expenses on Lease Liabilities - = 35.81
= - 35.81
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3.4 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Recognition of Intangible Assets
Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost or fair value as on the date of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

Subsequent Measurement
Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over estimated useful life of the intangible assets as per details below:

Estimated amortisation period
Software B years
The amortisation period for intangible assets with finite useful life is reviewed at each year-end. Changes in expected useful life is treated as changes in accounting estimates,

Derecognition of intangible assets
An item of intangible assets is derecognized on disposal or when fully amortized and no longer in use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of intangible assets
is included in profit or loss.

3.5 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification, An asset is treated as current when it is:
P Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

¥ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

P Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¥ There is no uncenditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating
cycle.

3.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
of impairment exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash generating units (CGUs),

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss,

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

3.7 INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials, components and consumables are ascertained on a FIFO basis. Cost, including fixed
and variable production overheads, are allocated to working-progress and finished goods determined on a full absorption cost basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and highly liquid investments with an eriginal maturity of up to three manth that are readily convertible

into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.

w

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets

Provisions:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal ar constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain,
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in respective expense.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax:
Provision for current tax is made as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or lass (either in other comprehensive income or in equity), Current tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reparting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxation authority.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

A 5-step approach is used to recognise revenue as below:

Step 1: Identify the contract{s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

a. Sale of products

The Company recognises revenues on the sale of products, net of discounts, sales incentives, customer bonuses and rebates granted, when products are delivered to dealers or
customers,

The Company offers sales incentives in the form of variable marketing expense to customers, which vary depending on the timing and customer of any subsequent sale of the
vehicle. This sales incentive is accounted for as a revenue reduction and is constrained to a level that is highly probable not to reverse the amount of revenue recognised when
any associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The Company estimates the expected sales incentive by market and considers uncertainties including competitor pricing,
ageing of retailer stock and local market conditions.

b. Convesion charges (lob Work Charges)

Revenue is recognized either over time, where the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the services or controls the asset as it is being processed, or
at a point in time, when the job work is completed and the processed goods are delivered to the customer. The transaction price is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of GST and other applicable taxes.

c. Freight services

Revenue from services rendered s recognised in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date when the cutcome of the transaction can be
estimated reliably.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf
of the government which are |evied on services such as Goods and service tax

d. Interest income
Interestincome on financial asset is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee Benefits:

Employee benefit liabilities such as salaries, wages and bonus, etc. that are expected ta be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at an undiscounted amount
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Post-employment benefit plans:

Defin tribution Plans:
State governed Provident Fund Scheme and Employees State Insurance Scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution paid / payable under the schemes is recognised
during the period in which the employees render the related services.

Defined benefit plans
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A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. Currently, the Company’s gratuity scheme is unfunded. The Company recognises the defined benefit liability in Balance
sheet. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan and the related current service cost and, where applicable past service cost are determined based on
an actuarial valuation done using the Projected Unit Credit Method by an independent actuary, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of

employee benefit entittement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
flows.

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) is reflected immediately in Other Comprehensive Income in
the Statement of Profit and loss. All other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expenses. Re-

measurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss hence it is treated as part of retained earnings in the
Statement of Changes In Equity.
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Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
P In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categarised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thatis
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either directly or indirectly,
Level 3: Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on the fair value measurement is not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpese of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ane entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through prefit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in five categories:

» Debt instruments at amortised cost

B Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

» Debt instruments, derivatives and equity Instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
» Equity instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation and losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the 5t of Profit & Loss. The amortised cost of the financial asset is also adjusted for loss allowance, if any.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is 2 residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC, is classified as at
FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only
if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch’). C y has not designated any such debt instrument as
at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Derecognition
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains

substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss [ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and
credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. Loans and trade receivables.

The company foll ‘simplified app h' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial habilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value deducted by, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the liability.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Company's financial liabilities include trade payables, borrowings and
other financial liabilities.

Under the effective interest method, the future cash payments are exactly discounted to the initial recognition value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and the maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net
of principal repayments, if any] of the financial liability over the relevant period of the financial liability to arrive at the amortized cost at each reporting date. The corresponding
effect of the amortization under effective interest method is recognized as expense over the relevant period of the financial liability in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing hiability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the Derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Campany currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year,

Diluted earnings per share (s computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average number of equity shares.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past
or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets up to the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use. The loan origination costs directly attributable to the acquisition of borrowings (e.g. loan processing fee, upfront fee) are amortised in
the year in which they occur

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible far
capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividend

Dividend is recognised in the financial statements in the period in which it is approved by the shareholders in the case of a final dividend and when declared by the Board of
Directors in the case of an interim dividend. Proposed dividends and dividends declared after the reporting date are not recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period in accordance with Ind AS 10 - Events after the Reporting Period, Such dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The distribution of dividends is
made in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulations.

Forelgn Travel Expenses
Sales promotion expenses also include costs incurred on foreign tours offered to dealers as incentives under schemes introduced by the Company for achieving specified sales
targets. These expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of incurrence.
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b Capital Work in Progress

Particulars Opening Addition  Captalized Dur_'ing-- Closing
Capital WIP the Year Capital WIP

FY 2024-25

Capital work in Progress 1,624.72 1,521.28 3,093.50 52.50
Total 1,624.72 1,521.28 3,093.50 52.50
FY 2023-24

Capital work in Progress 130.96 1,883.14 389.38 1,624.72
Total 130.96 1,883.14 389.38 1,624.72
FY 2022-23

Capital work in Progress - 258.81 127.85 130.96
Total - 258.81 127.85 130.96

The Capital Work is Progress aging schedule during transition period is as follows:

As at March 31, 2025
Amount in capital work in progress for period of
Particulars Less then 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
Project in Progress - 33.03 19.47 - 52.50
Project Temporary Suspended - - - -
Total - 33.03 | 19.47 - 52.50
As at March 31, 2024
Amount in capital work in progress for period of
Particulars Less then 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
Project in Progress 1,493.75 130.96 - - 1,624.72
Project Temporary Suspended = = = = =
Total 1,493.75 130.96 - - 1,624.72
As at March 31, 2023
' = - Amount in capital work in progress for period of
Particulars Less then 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
Project in Progress 130.96 - - - 130.96
Project Temporary Suspended - - - - -
Total : 130.96 - - - 130.96

Note:

"There are currently no defined timeline or budget for the project underway under Capital Work in Progress (WIP).There are no CWIP
Assets which become overdue compared to their original plan or where cost is exceeded compared to original plan, therefore disclosure
relating thereto is not required".




5 Investment Properties

' Factory Electrical
ok ; Total
Description Freehold Land Building Inetallation ota
Balance as at 01 April 2022 1,624.87 424.69 5.00 2,054.56
Additions 159.05 287.45 0.75 447.24
Deletion
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,783.92 712.13 5.75 2,501.80
Balance as at 01 April 2023 1,783.92 712.13 LR 2,501.80
Additions 44,19 - 44.19
Deletions - - -
Balance As at 31 March 2024 1,828.11 712.13 5.75 2,545.99
Balance as at 01 April 2024 1,828.11 712.13 5.75 2,545.99
Additions 160.64 - - 160.64
Deletions
Balance As at 31 March 2025 1,988.75 712.13 5.75 2,706.63
Depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2022 - 9.94 0.25 10.19
Depreciation for the year 13.44 0.30 13.74
Depreciation on disposals
‘Balance as at 31 March 2023 - 23.38 0.55 23.93
Balance as at 01 April 2023 - 23.38 0.55 23.93
Depreciation for the year - 13.44 0.28 13.72
Depreciation on disposals
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - 36.83 0.83 37.65
Balance as at 01 April 2024 - 36.83 0.83 37.65
Depreciation for the year 13.44 0.32 13.76
Depreciation on disposals
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - 1 50.27 1.15 51.42
_Balance as at 31 March 2025 1,988.75 661.86 460 2,655.21
‘Balance as at 31 March 2024 1,828.11 675.31 4.92 2,508.34
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,783.52 688.75 5.20 2,477.87

*Fair Market Value as per Valuation Report by registered Valuer for Investment property Land & Factory Building is

3437.76 Lakh
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BMW VENTURES LIMITED

Address : 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 800004

CIN:U25111BR1994PLCDDG1 31
Notes to Balance Sheet

(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

3 Asat Asat Asat
orher non-current finsnclal assets 315t March 2025 315t Morch 2024 315t March 2023
Secured, considered good
Fuved Deposits with Bank with maturity more than 12 menths 118.25 78.97 44360
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Security Deposits 7152 58.03 83.02
190.82 137.00 - 526.64
Netes:
(a). Bank depasits having maturity of more than twelve months held as margin against berrowings.
i Asar CAsat Asat
ppbeti 315t March 2025 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Prepaid Lease - - 359.03
Advance for Capital Assets 192.74 259.17 203.50
182.74 258.17 562.53
3 Asat As at As at
ientnges 315t March 2025 31st March 2024 315t March 2023
Raw Materials 396.71 35531 32214
Finished Goods 596,16 434,22 385.26
Stock in Trad 29,182 64 31,277.93 12,751.68
Toml: oo 30,175.51 32,067.46 23,459.08
Nate:
{a) Inventories s values at Cost or Net Realisable vale whichever is lower.
(b} The Above Inventories have been hypothecated against borrwoing or the Company,
S Asat As at As at
(Euerant imosstmant 315t March 2025 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Investment in Quoted Equity Sharelnvestment in Quoted Equity Sharelnvestment in Quoted Equity Share
100 equity shares of Flax Food Limited 0.04 0.11 0.08
Investment in Fartnership Firm BMW Hardware 8 steel 207.14 106.92 T6.52
Investment in Gold 149.35 68.31 44,85
i 356.54 175.34 121.84
100 equity shares of rs 10/- each fully paid up of Flex Food Limited 0.01 0.01 0.01
Cost of Gold 123.57 54.63 44.85
5 L Asat As at As at
Tine receleables 315t March 2025 31st March 2024 315t March 2023
Unsecured®
Censidered goad
Less than & Months 15,346.08 12,870.88 10,089.33
& months 10 1 year 116.08 407.85 51544
Mare than 1 year 1,386.82 1,428.20 953.02
Creditimpaired
16,849.00 14,706.93 11,572.78
Lass: Allowance for Doubtiul Recevables (437.82) (606.54) (579.44)
Total ; ! 16,411.18 14,100.29 10,093.34
* Trade recelvable includes trade receivable from related parties 0.37 0.16 0.05
Notes:
[a). Trade receivable are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 1510 45 Days.
(b). The Abave debtars have been hypothecated against borrwoing ar the Company.
;c . Trade Receivables Aging Schedule
L As at Asat As at
{Qutstanding from due date of payment / from date of transaction) 315t March 2025 ¥t barciido2a 315t March 2023
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good
Less than 6 months 1533287 12,773.42 10,043.12
B months - 1 year 107.86 32112 441.75
1-2 years 175.62 364.69 22392
2-3 years 27781 189.46 107.82
Mare than 3 years 517.02 435.60 176.71
16,411.18 14,100.29 10,993.34
(i} Undisputed Trade bles - cradit impaired
Less than 6 months 1321 9146 56.21
Gmonths - 1 year 8.23 B5.74 713.68
1-2 years 58.54 153.76 129,74
2-3 years 134567 80.83 107.82
Maore than 3 years 193.08 181,52 176.71
407.793 594 30 54417
{iir) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered good
Less than 6 months o
& months - 1 year = =
1-2 years “ 3
2-3 years 2,
More than 3 years -
{iv} Disputed Trade Receivables —credit impaired
Less than & menths -
& maonths - 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years 30.08 12.35 35.27
30.08 I .27
() Unbilled dues
Total Debtor 16,849.00 14,706.23 1157278
Less: Provision lor doubtful receivables (437.82) (606.64] {579.44)
16,411.18 14,100.29 10,993.34
16,411.18 14,100.29 10,993.34
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BRW VENTURES LIMITED
Address : 18T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 800004
CIN:U25111BR1994PLCODEL3L
Notes to Balance Sheet

(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

i Asat Asat As at
s OB e | 315t March 2025 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Cash on hand 598 13.95 1362
Balances with banks 1,237.44 3891 1432
Bank deposit with maturity less than 3 months . = =
Tatal 1,243.43 52.86 2754
Notes:
(a). Bank deposits having maturity of mare than twelve months held as margin against borrowings.

Kbata Nt iealents” : As at Asat . Asat
Benkmunies s thanfoech & cuih fqlvalanty y 31stMarch 2025 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Bank deposit with maturity more than 3 manths but less than 12 manths 378.61 387.74 =
Total 378.61 387.74 -
Naotes:

(2). Bank depasits having maturity of more than twelve manths held as margin against borrowings.

- As at Asat Asat
ey S Lox and sovances 31t March 2025 315t March 2024 3151 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good

Onher Receivables 2.141.31 2,239.43 3.80

Security Deposits® 433.00 43200 44.56
Tatal 3 ] 2,574.31 2,672.43 48.46
Security Deposits includes Security Deposit given to related parties 433.00 433.00 44,56
Othe t Asat Asat Asat

U i i 31st March 2025 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Balances with Government Authorities - 1.,430.54 1,203.08
Balances with Eranches 2 - =
Prepald Lease Expenses - 13.30
Prepaid Expenses 1852 -

Advance for Expenses 1,075.39 B812.02 698,73
advance to suppliers 936,17 287.87 474.73
Total 2,031.07 2,530.43 2,389.85
Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under:
: } ! Period ended Period ended Year ended
ised of Profit '
Snhedinthe e o conk e 315t March 2025 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Current tax:
-in respect of the current year 97482 94795 1,045.83
- Tax expenses of earlier year - - -
974.82 947,95 1,045.83
Deferred tax expense:
Attributable to -
- Origination and reversal of temporary differences 20430 95.22 1224
204.30 95.22 12,24
Total Income tax expense 1,179.13 1,043.16 1,058.08
N Sy - S Otliet Compratiensles Intorma Period ended Period ended Year ended
315t March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Net ain g { defined

o.sw’!sd )on re-measurements of define S8 (9:95) 1654
benefit plans
Income tex charged to OCI .81 {9.95} 16.74
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

' Asat b As at
1st April 2022 W o 31st March 2023
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Deferred tax relates to the following: 206.7 12.24 218.94
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans
6.03 = {16.74] (10.71)
Deferred Tax U.‘ll'l.lﬁeliNlﬂ 212.73 12.24 (16.74} 20823
As at As at
1st April 2023 Eroft Eloss 2 31st March 2024
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Delerred 1ax relates to the following: 218.9 95.22 314.16
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans
(10.71) - 9.95 (0.76)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Not) 208.23 9522 595 313.40
As at : As at
&
15t April 2024 Posthlos o 315t March 2025
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Deferred tax relates to the following: 314.2 20430 518.47
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans
[0.76) 281 2.05
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 313.40 204.30 2.81 520.51
Income Tax Assats (Net) Asst As at Asat
z 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation)
{Including Refund Receivable) ) 25 1828
- 23.55 141.86
Income Tax Liabilities (Net) Asat . .I\s at . ~ Asat
i - 313t March 2025 315t March 2024 313t March 2023
Income Tax Liabilities 21.45 = 23.06
21.46 - 23.06
Equity Share Capital
! : As at As al Asat
Authorised & issued Share Capita

S3 g pial 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Authorised Share Cag Nuf:ber of Amount in lakhs Number of shares Amount in lakhs Number of shares Amount in lakhs
shares
Equity Shares of Rs 1/- each 5 Z _ = 40,00,00,000 4,000.00
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 9,00,00,000 9,000.00 9,00,00,000 9,000.00 ' &
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up Number of Amount in |akhs Number of shares Amount in lakhs Number of shares Amount in lakhs
shares
Equity Shares of Rs 1/- each - - - - 15,82,87.500 1,582.88
Equity Shares af fis 10/- each 6,33,15,000 633150 6.33.15.000 633150 - -




BMW VENTURES LIMITED
Address : 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 300004
CIN:U251118R1994PLC00613L

Notes to Balance Sheet

(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

(b) Reconciliation of Share Capital

As at
31st March 2025

Asat
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up

Equity Shares of Rs 1/- each

Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each®

Sub-division of 1 shares of face value of Rs 10/- each into 1 share of face
value Rs. 1/- each effective September 30, 2023 (Increase in number of
shares on account of Sub-division) (a)

Consalidation of 10 shares of face value of Rs 1/- each into 1 share of
face value Rs. 10/- each effective September 30, 2023 (Decrease in
number of shares on account of Consolidation]|b)

Add: Bonus Shares issued

Number Amount

Number

Number

Amount

6,33,15.000 6,331.50

15,82,87,500

(14,24,58,750)

4,74,86,250

1,582.88

472863

1,58,28,750
14,24,58,750

1,562.88

Closing Balance

6,33,15.000.00

.33, 6,331.50

5,33,15,000.00

6,331.50

15,82,87,500

1,582.88

3] The Sharehclders of the Company, al the Extraordinary General Meeting held on August 06, 2022, had approved the Sub-Division of 1 equity share of face value Rs, 10 each (fully paid-up) inta 10 equity share of face value Rs. 1

each, The record date for the said sub-division was set at August 06, 2022,

b} The Shareholders of the Company, at the Annual General Meeting held on Sept 30, 2023, had approved the Consolidation of 10 equity share of face value As. 1 each (fully paid-up) into 1 equity share of face value Rs. 10 each.

The recard date for the said sub-division was set at Sept 30, 2023,

(e} Terms and rights attached to equity shares

i) The Company has only one class of equity shares. The halders of equity shares are entitled te one vote per share.

i) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of eguity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preterential dues. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number

of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(d) Number of shares held by each shareholder holding more than S percent of the issued share capital:

As at 315t March 2025

Name of Shareholder " No, of Shares held %af

: el ; Holding
BMW FIN - INVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 2,43,82,600 38.51%
NITIN KISHOREPURIA 1,75,97,200 27.79%
SABITA DEVI KISHOREPURLA 57,398,200 9.16%
RIDHI SIDHI FINCON PRIVATE LIMITED 55,35,000 a.7a%
RACHNA KISHOREPURIA 44,564,000 7.05%
BUAY KUMAR KISHOREPURIA 39,656,600 6.26%
Total : 6,17,43,600  g1.E2%

T Asat3lstMarch2024
Name of Shareholder 3 No. of Shares held % of

St
BMW FIN - INVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 2,43,82,600 38.51%
NITIN KISHOREPURIA 1,75.97.200 27.79%
SABITA DEVI KISHOREPURIA 57,98,200 9.16%
RIDHI SIDHI FINCON PRIVATE LIMITED 55,35,000 B74%
RACHNA KISHOREPURLA 44,564,000 7.05%
BUAY KUMAR KISHC URIA 39,686,600 6.26%
Total "6,17,43,600 97.52%
T i As at 315t March 2023
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares held % of
i 1 Holding

BMW FIN - INVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 6.16,13,500 3B.93%
NITIN KISHOREPURIA 1,59,93,000 10.10%
SABITA DEV| KISHOREPURIA 2,24,95,500 14.21%
RIDHI SIDHI FINCON PRIVATE LIMITED 1,38,37,500 B.74%
RACHNA KISHOREPURLIA 1,11,50,000 7.05%
BUAY KUMAR KISHOREPURIA 2,99,16,500 18.90%
Total T = 15,50,16,000 97.93%




(e) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters in the

BMW VENTURES LIMITED

CIN:U25111BR1994PLCOOG131
Notes to Balance Sheet

Address : 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 800004

{Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Name of Shareholder

As at 31st March 2025

No, of Shares held % of Holding % of Change
NITIN KISHOREFURIA 1,75,97,200 22.79% 0.00%
SABITA DEVI KISHOREPURIA 57,598,200 9.16% 0.00%
RACHNA KISHOREPURIA A4,64,000 7.05% 0.00%
BUAY RUMAR KISHOREPURIA 39,66,600 6.26% D.00%
BMW FIN - INVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 2,43,82,600 38.51% 0.00%
RIDHI SIDHI FINCON PRIVATE LIMITED 55,35,000 8.74% 0.00%
Totel 5,17,43,600 97.52%
As at 31st March 2024
Hiamaof Snarehcieer No. of Shares held % of Holding % of Change
NITIN KISHOREPURIA 1,75,97,200 27.75% 17.69%
SABITA DEVI KISHDREPURIA 57,958,200 9.16% 5.05%
RACHNA KISHOREPURIA 44,654,000 7.05% 0.00%
BUAY KUMAR KISHOREPURIA 39,656,600 5.26% -12.64%
BMW FIN - INVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 2,43,82,600 38.51% 0.42%
RIDHI SIDHI FINCON PRIVATE LIMITED 55,35,000 3..7'19.¢ 0.00%
Total | 5,17,43,600 - 97.51%
A ey ‘As ot 315t March 2023

HAS bi S iacaowes; No, of Shares held % of Holding % of Change

NITIN KISHOREPURIA 1,59,53,000 10:10% 2.84%
SABITA DEVI KISHOREPURLA 2,24,95,500 14.21% 8.68%
RACHNA KISHOREPURLA 1,11.60,000 T.05% 5.20%
BUAY KUMAR KISHOREPURLA 2,99.15,500 18.90% 5.82%
BMW FIN - INVEST PRIVATE LIMITED 6,18,13,500 38.93% -0.02%
RIDHI SIDHI FINCON PRIVATE LIMITED 1,38.37,500 8.74% 0.00%
Total 15,50,16,000 97.93%

e}  Equity shares movement during five years preceding March 31, 2025

Equity shares

i. The Company has not issued any shares without payment being received in cash.

ii. The Company allotted 4,74,86,250 equity shares as fully paid up bonus shares by capitalisation of profits transferred from General Reserve amounting to 4,748.63 Lakh in the month of March, 2024, pursuant to an Special
resolution passed after taking the consent of shareholders in Extra Ordinary General Meeting.

iii. The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares

17 othe E. i Aetuined E W‘!“ﬂfes!‘s“ General reserve Bthar Foospant Total
ErEovity etained Earnings 0

Balance as at 1st April 2022 3,330.81 7,500.00 1783 10,848.74
Prafit/{loss) for the year 3,265.86 - (49.77) 3,216.09
Transfer to General Reserve {2,500.00) 2,500.00 » =
Balance as at 315t March 2023 4,096.67 10,000.00 (31.85) 14,064.82
Balance as at 1st April 2023 4,096.67 10,000.00 (31.85) 14,064.82
Profit/|loss) for the year 2,993.54 - 29.58 3,023.12
Transter to General Reserve [2,248.63) 2,248.63 - -
Bonus issued During the year - {4,748.63) - (4,748.63)
Balance as at 315t March 2024 4,841.58 7,500.00 ] {2.27) 12,339.31
Balance as at 15t April 2024 4,841.58 7,500.00 [2.27) 12,339.31
Profitf{lass) for the year 3,282.33 B.36 3,290.69
Transfer to General Reserve {2,500.00) 2,500.00 -
Oividend paid during the Year (549.73) (849.73)
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 4,674.19 10,000.00 6.08 14,680.28
NOTES TO RESERVES

a. Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Cempany has earned 1l date, add/(less) any transfers from/(to)general reserve, securities p and dek | lon reserve, dividends or other distributions paid 1o

shareholders. Retained earnings includes re-measurement gain/{loss) on defined benefit obligations, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss.

b. Genreal Reserve

A General Reserve is a portion of a company’s profit that is set aside voluntarily and not earmarked for any specific purpose.

c. Dividend

Any dividend dedared by BMW Ventures Limited is based on the profits available for distribution as reported in the statutory financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with ind AS. Indian law permits the
declaration and payment of dividend out of profits for the year or previous financial year(s) as stated in the statutery financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accaunting Principles in
India, or Ind A5 after providing for depreciation in accordance with the provisions of schedule Il to the Companies Act

Pursuant to the autharity granted by the Board of Directars at their meeting held on 3rd March 2025, the Company has dedared an interim dividend of RS 1.5 per equity share [aggregate amount Rs 349.73 lakhs) for the financial
year ended 2024-25. The dividend was paid out on 4th March 2025 to shareholders registered as on the record date of 28th February 2025,
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BMW VENTURES LIMITED
Address : 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 800004
CIN:U25111BR1994PLCOOS131
Notes to Balance Sheet
[Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Borrow As at S Asat 0 Asat
b 315t March 2025 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Secured: Loans from bank

Term Loans 3,119.20 4,503.96 4,145.4%
Total : © 311930 4,503.96 4,145.49
Notes:
a. Terms of Repayment
i, GECL Demand Term Lean from PNE {total outstanding as at 31-03-2025 rv is 21167 Lakhs) ble in monthiy of Rs. 26.45 lakh from 2022 ds in 48 equal | 1l [excluding interest).
ii. Loan Against properties from HOFC Bank {Total Outstanding as at 31-03-2025 561.03 Lakhs) is repayable in monthly i of As 17.53 lakh

jii. Car Loan (Mercedes) from PNB {Total cutstanding as at 31.03.3025 is Rs. 48.15 Lakhs) is repayable in monthly instalments of Rs 1.23 lakh each (Including Interest).
iv. GECL Demand Term Loan from PNB [total cutstanding as at 31-03-2025 is As. 410,10 Lakhs] is repayable in monthly instalments of As. 13.23 lakh from December 2021 onwards in 48 equal Instalment [excluding interest).

v. Loan Against properties from HDFC Bank {Total Qutstanding as at 31-03-2025 is As. 1832.87 Lakhs| is bla in monthly | of Rs 21.56 lakh

vi. Loan Against properties from HDFC Bank (Total Qutstanding asat 31-03-2025 is Rs. 633,33 Lakhs) is repayable in monthly instalments of fs 16.57 lakh

vil. Equipment Term Loan from Axis bank for 7 yable in menthly instal of Rs, 0.14 Lakh for sach equipment in 37 Manthly Instalment {Including interest).
viil, Equipment Term Loan from Axis bank for 7 Equij yable in monthly !/ of Rs, 0.52 Lakh far each equipment in 53 Monthly Instalment (Including Interest],
ix. Equipment Term Loan from Axis bank for 7 Equipments, repayable in monthly instaiments of Rs. 0.81 Lakh for each eq in 47 Monthly {including Interest),

x. Equipment Term Loan from Axis Bank for 16 Equip payable in monthly instal of Rs.0.64 Lakh for each Equipment in 47 Monthly Instalment {Including Interest}.
i, Equipment Term Loan from Axis Bank for 16 ble in monthly I of Rs.0.64 Lakh for each Equipment in 47 Manthly Instalment (Including Interest)
xii. Equipment Term Loan from ICICI Bank for 10 ble in monthly instal of Rs.0.57 Lakh for each Equipment in 46 Manthly Instalment (Including Interest)

xlil. During the caption year we have taken a working capital demand loan from State Bank of India Dak Bungalow road branch wide account no-42900329440 . The Said Ioan was given in foreign currency which results in purchase
of 10092677 USD equivalent to Rs B485.16Lakh, The said account was closed by making repayment of the loan 1o the bank on 10th June 2024

b, The company does not have any delault in repayment of loan and interest on the balance sheet date.

€. Nature of Security Given :

(1) The Campany has avalled a Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line (GECL) Demand Term Loan frem Punjab Naticnal Bank, The total cutstanding under this facility as at March 31, 2025 15 21167 lakhs The loan is secured by
hypothecation of inventories, book debts and other current assets of the Company. (n additien, the facility is secured by cash collateral in the form of fized deposits amounting to 468,00 lakhs, collateral security of property
comprising the Cld Stock Yard siwuated at Mauza — Baikathpur, and residential flats situated at 112 and 113, Triveni Apartment, £ast Bonng Canal Road, Patna, standing in the name of Bijay Kumar Kishorpuna (HUF), The loan is
further secured by personal ruarantees of the Directors, namely, Mr. Bilav Kumar Kishorpuria, Mr. Nitin Kishorouria, Mrs. Sabita Dev) Kisharounia and Mrs, Rachna Kisherouria,

(i) The Company has availed a Loan Against Property from HOFC Bank, the total outstanding of which as at March 31, 2025 is %561.03 lakhs, The loan is secured by morigage of the Company’s New Stock Yard situated at Mauza -
Baikathpur and is further secured by the personal guarantees of the Directors, namely, Mr. Bijay Kumar Kishorpuria, Mr, Nitin Kisharpuria, Mrs. Sabita Devi Kishorpuria and Mrs. Rachna Kishorpuria.

|iii)} Car Loan {Mercedes) from Punjab National Bank is secured by hypothecation of Car and Personal Guarantee of Directar, Mr. Bijay Kumar Kishorpuria.

(iv) The Company has availed & Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line {GECL] Demand Term Loan from Punjab National Bank. The total cutstanding under this facility as at March 31, 2025 is %410.10 lakhs, The loan is secured by
hypothecation of inventaries, hook debts and other current assets of the Company. In addition, the facility is secured by cash collateral in the form of fixed deposits amounting to T468,00 lakhs, collateral security of property
comprising the Qld Stock Yard situated a1 Mauza - Baikathpur, and residential Nats sitvated a1 112 and 113, Triveni Apartment, East Boring Canal Road, Patna, standing in the name of Bijay Kumar Kishorpuria (HUF). The loan is
further secured by personal guaraniees of the Directors, namely, Mr. Bijay Kumar Kishorpuria, Mr, Nitin Kishorpuria, Mrs. Sabita Devi Kishorpuria and Mrs. Rachna Kishorpuria.

[v] The Company has availed a Loan Against Property from HDFC Bank, the tatal cutstanding of which as at March 31, 2025 is ¥1,832.87 lakhs. The loan is secured by mortgage of the Company’s Purnia Stock Yard and is further
secured by the persenal guaraniees of the Directors, namely, Mr. Bifay Kumar Kishorguria, Me. Nitn Eish, ia, Mrs. $abita Devi Kishorpuria and Mrs. Rachna Kishorpuria

[vi) The Company has availed a Loan Against Property from HDFC Bank, the 1otal cutstanding of which as at March 31, 2025 |s %633.33 lakhs. The loan is secured by mortgage of the Company’s Purnia Stock Yard and s further
secured by the personal guarantees of the Directors, namely, Mr. Bijay Kumar Kishorpuria, Mr. Nitin Kishorpuria, Mrs. Sabita Devi Kishorpuria and Mrs. Rachna Kishorpuria,

[vil} Equipment Term Loan from Asis bank is secured by hypothecation of Equipments and personal guarantee of Directors, namely, Mr. Bijay Kumar Kishorpuria, Mr. Nitin Kisharpuria, Mrs. Sabita Devi Kisherpuria and trs. Rachna
Kishorpuria,

[wiii) Equipment Term Loan from ICICI bank is secured by hypothecation of Equipments and personal guarantee of namely, Mr. Bijay Kumar Kishorpuria, Mr, Nitin Kishorpuria, Mrs. Sabita Dewi Kishorpuria and Mrs. Rachna
Kishorpuria.

: SRR e e RS R S ; e oooihsat ; Asat Asat
Lease Liakiithes 315t March 2025 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Lease Liabilities - % 36838
™ - - 368.38
2 Z As at Asat Asat
CaberiSimn il LbH e Now ot 315t March 2025 313t March 2024 315t March 2023
Security Depaosits 35.00 20.00 25.00
35.00 20.00 25.00
As at Asat CAsat
Provisions (Non-current) i 31st March 2025 31stMarch2024  31stMarch2023
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 40)
Provision for pratuity 60.04 67.34 B7.18
Total | i i T e S : T 67.34 i 87.18
: z 73 : Asat o Asat
Current Borrowings G | 3stMarch2025 3istMarch2024  31stMarch2023
Secured Loans from Banks
Cash Credits From Bank 29,938.06 26,719.76 23,477.01
Channel Finance 8456783 6,946 .40 .
current Maturities of Long term borrowings 1.312.46 1.358.54 735.94
Total LR i S . 39,719.35 35,025.70 24,212.55
Cash Credit

a) Terms of repayments : On Demand

b) Nature of Security Given:

{i) The Company has availed a Cash Credit facility, including Working Capital Demand Loans, from Punjab National Bank, Patna, with a sanctioned lmit of ®17,500.00 lakhs, The facility is secured by hypothecation of inventories,
book debts and other current assets of the Company, In addition, the facility is secured by cash collateral in the form of fixed deposits amounting to T468.00 lakhs, callateral security of property comprising the Old Stock Yard
situated at Mauza = Baikathpur, and residential flats situated at 112 and 113, Triveni Apartment, East Boring Canal Road, Patna, standing in the name of Bijay Kumar Kisharpuria [HUF). The facility is further secured by personal
guarantees of the Oirectors, namely, Mr, Bijay Kumar Kisharpuna, Mr. Nitin Rishorpuria, Mrs. Sabita Devi Kisherpuria and Mrs. Rachna Kisharpuria

{ii) The Company has availed a Cash Credit facility, including Warking Capital Demand Loans, from HDFC Bank with a sanctioned limit of $13,500.00 lakhs, The facility |s secured by a first pari passu charge on the inventories and
book debts of the Company. In addition, the facility i secured by collateral in the form of commercial property comprising the New Stockyard situated at Mauza - Baikathpur, Patna, and cash collateral in the form of fixed deposits
amounting to %15.00 lakhs. The facility is also secured by personal puarantees of the Directers, namely, Mr. Bijay Kumnar Kishorpuria, 8Mr. Nitin Kishorpuria, Wrs. $abia Devi Kishorpuria and Mrs, Rachna Kisharpuria.

€] The company does not have any continuing default in repayment of loan and interest on the balance sheet date.

CHANNEL FINANCE

a) Terms of repayments : Cn Demand

b) Nature of Security Given:

i)Channel Finance from Standard Chartered Bank is personally guaranteed by Directars & secured by pledge of Stock & Book Debts created out of bank finance of Standard Chartered Bank.
iijChannel Finance from DBS Bank is personally guaranteed by Directors & secured by pledge of Stock & Book Debts created out of bank finance of DBS Bank.

liijchannel Finance from Yes Bank is personally guaranteed by Direciors & secured by pledge of Stock & Book Debts created out of bank finance of Yes Bank,

iv|Channel Finance from ICIC) Bank is personally guaranteed by Directors & secured by pledge of Stock & Book Debts created out of bank finance of ITICI Bank.

{v) Channel Finance from Tata Capital is personally guaranteed by Directors & secured by pledge on Stock & Book Debts created out of bank finance of Tata Capital
{wi)Channel Finance from Axis Bank Limited is perconally guaranteed by Directors & secured by pledge of Stock & Book Debts ereated out of bank finance of Axis Bank Limited.
vit)Channel Finance from Federal Bank % personally guaranteed by Directors & secured by pledge of Stock & Book Debis created out of bank finance of Federal Bank.
villjChannel Finance fram Ind. Bank is B d by Directors & secured by pledge of Stock & Book Debts created out of bank finance of indsuind Bank

The Company has borrowings Irom banks against the security of current assets and the ¥ is i the of stock and receivables to the banks. The monthly statements of current asset filed by the
company are in agreement with the books of accounts with a variation of 3%, Such variations are incorporated along with Imr other audit related changes at their respective time imtervals. Fellowing is the variance table in the
respective months:

Yearly Current Assets - Submitted Current Assets - As per

to Bank Books

March, 2025 47.561.89 46,586.69

Ditference 2.09% .

March, 2024 47,950.67 | 46,774.39

Difference 251%

March, 2033 35,326.75 J 35,031.86

[Difference 1.24%




23

24

25

6

27

BMW VENTURES LIMITED

Address : 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - BOODDO4

CIN:U25111BR1994PLCO06L31
Notes to Balance Sheet

(s in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

- : : Asat Asat Asat
e 31st March 2025 315t March 2024 31st March 2023
LEASE LIABILITIES 60.00
Total = b 50.00
t : L asat Asat Asat
Tisderayabies ‘315t March 2025 315t March 2024 315t March 2023
Dues to Micro enterprises & small enterprises (Refer Note b below) 3 - =
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 083 2,387.48 527.77
Total : ; PR 30.83 2,387.48 527.77
{a) Aging of Trade payable
Particulars Azt Asat Asat
Outsta irom the dus date of ent/from the date of transaction 313t March 2025 31st March 2024 313t March 2023
{i) MSME
Less than 1 year
1-2 year 5
2-3 year
More than 3 years
(i} Others
Less than 1 year 30.83 2,387.48 527.77
1-2 year
2-3 year
More than 3 years -
30.83 238748 S2TTT
{ii) Disputed dues-MSME
Less than 1 year -
1-2 year = =
2-3year
Mare than 3 years =
(i) Accruals
Less than L year
1-2 year
2.3 year -
1-2 year - -
Total Trade Payables 30.83 2,387.88 527.77
Motes:
(a) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled upto 30 days terms
(b} Company does not have any creditars wha is registerad as MSME as per the Micre, small and Medium Enterprises Cevelopment Act, 2006
! Asat As";l
Other finandial liabilities {Curre R s s
i ; £ 315t March 2025 31st March 2023 -
Sundry creditor for services/Expenses * 701.65 B55.82 480.25
Payable for Employees benefit 9.16 11.14 -
m:uto_r_'ﬂ Liabilities 751.92 128.70 1,301.36
Total = 1,462.73 995.66 . 1,781.61
* Sundry creditor for services/Expenses includes payable ta related parties 10836 249.41 74.42
Other current Habilities AERE i Ll
% il 31st March 2025 313t March 2024 st March 2023
Advance Received from Customers 1,6159.11 2,571.92 1,070.59
Total 1,619.41 - 2,571.92 1,070.59
Provision {Current) | Asat
L2l ._ 31t March 2023
Pravision for employee benefits (Refer Note 40)
Provision for gratuity 939 58.51 43.76
Total 9.39 58.51 43.76




BMW VENTURES LIMITED

Address : 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 800004

Notes to Statement of Profit and Loss

(Rs In lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Period ended Period ended Year ended
28 Revenue from Operations 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Sale Of
Trading Products 2,04,118.09 . 1,90,820.76 2,00,180.67
Manufacturing products 1,088.40 2,040.35 82312
Other Operating Income 5§97.04 958.52 505.92
Total 2,06,203.52 1,93,819.63 2,01,509.72
Period ended Period ended Year ended
29 Other Income 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Commission - 0.91 20.03
Energy Generation Charges 8.45 10.23 10.93
Installation & Maintenance Charges - 3 7.74
Interest Received 123.66 119.75 89.79
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 2.70 - 2.28
Sales Promotion 59.95 71.47 2062
Rent/Establishment Charges Received 2.58 4.68 18.42
Balance W/Off 2.48 = 0.22
Insurance Claim Received 2.10 2.69 -
Rent Income 135.74 132.65 128.80
Gain on Cancellation of Lease contract - 37.41
Gain on Debtor Impairment 168.82
Interest on Income tax Refund 0.89
Interest on Deposits (IND AS) - - 3.70
Fair Market Value gain on Investment 22.11 3.72 -
Profit from Partnership Firm 0.22 - -
Total 529.69 383.52 302.51
Period ended Period ended Year ended
30 Cost of Material Consumed 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Opening Stock
Raw material 355.31 322.14 589.62
Add: Purchase of Raw Material 834.87 1,813.67 396.04
Less: Rebate/ discount - - 1.40
Closing Stock
Raw material 396.71 355.31 322.14
Total 793.47 1,780.50 662.11
Period ended Period ended Year ended
31 Purchase of Stock in Trade 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Iron & Steel 1,82,869.56 1,84,950.10 1,95,575.21
Agrico (Taxable) 2,165.95 1,848.78 1,521.24
Tractor & Accessories 1,116.01 1,639.00 2,371.59
Door, Accessories & Others 1,704.73 1,371.12 1,526.81
1,87,856.25 1,89,808.99 2,00,994.85
Add: Freight In Purchase 3,217.04 2,820.10 2,807.55
1,91,073.29 1,92,629.09 2,03,802.39
Less: Discount , Rebate & Claim 7,784.25 8,781.94 6,375.79
1,83,289.05 1,83,847.15 1,97,426.61
Total 1,83,289.05 1,83,847.15 1 1,97,426.61




32

33

35

BMW VENTURES LIMITED

Address : 1ST FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 800004

Notes to Statement of Profit and Loss

(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

. Period ended Period ended Year ended
Changes in Inventories 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Closing Stock
Iron & Steel 26,184.88 28,640.63 20,958.04
Agrico (Taxable) 1,355.06 1,213.76 1,030.52
Tractor & Accessories 56.75 44.03 38.75
Bathroom Fittings o ; #
Door, Accessories & Others 1,483.64 1,052.43 702.48
Scrap 0.50 25.41 21.89
Manufacturing
PVC Pipe 15.89 30.20 65.52
Colour Sheet Blue Diamond & PEB 205.90 363.96 318.73
Railway 476.17 34173
Finished Goods - -
29,778.80 31,712.15 23,136.94
Less : Dpening Stock 31,712.15 23,136.94 11,840.67
Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories 1,933.35 (8,575.21) (11,296.27)
Tatal 1,933.35 (8,575.21) (11,296.27)
Period ended Period ended Year ended
Employee Benefits Expenses 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Salary B2376 839.58 794.23
Wages 439.49 418.93 420.61
Bonus 82.38 83.96 78.79
House Rent allowance 6.80 6.97 7.3
Incentive to Employee 321.97 289.85 281.38
Group Health Insurance 36.07 25.50 18.95
Staff & Labour Welfare 122.23 112.99 85.69
Contribution to E. S. | 22.97 2217 20,77
Leave Encashment 0.29 0.75 -
Contribution to P. F. 115.56 111.04 104.51
Gratuity 79.25 70.88 61.29
Employee Training 10,97 32.02 28.60
Total 2,061.74 2,014.64 1,902.14
Period ended Period ended Year ended
Finance Cost 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Interest
Interest to Banks on CC/Term Loans 3,055.70 2,548.38 1,825.16
Interest on Channel Finance 696.27 201.28 186.15
Interest on Unsecured Loan 26.77 9.75 5.15
Interest to Supplier 39.86 12.88
Interest on Lease Expenses - - 35.81
Total 3,778.75 2,799.27 2,065.15
Period ended Period ended Year ended
Depreciation expense 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Depreciation expense on Property, Plant & Equipment 356.09 419,69 357.07
Depreciation on ROU ASSETS - 38.44
Total 356.09 419.69 395,51




BMW VENTURES LIMITED
Address : 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - 800004
Notes to Statement of Profit and Loss
(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Period ended Period ended Year ended
36 Other Expenses : 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Manufacturing Expenses
Carriage Inwards 16.03 38.10 52.49
Packing Material 171.22 178.33 219.96
PEB & Railway Manufacturing Expenses 535.06 339.52 21.18
Crane and Generator Running Expenses 122.72 148.88 76.62
Consumable Stores 20.58 58.75 49.63
Power & Fuel-Poly Tube 857 12,24 19.01
Rent Equipment Expenses 115.79 73.88 &
Total . 989.98 850.71 438.89
Other Expenses
Advertisement & Publicity (Net) 8.61 21.52 6.27
Auditors’ Remuneration 4.00 4.00 4.00
Bad Debts - 1.23 19.19
Books & Periodicals 0.16 0.14 0.13
Bank Commission & Charges 83.29 66.18 55.35
Commission - 5.61 3.08
Dealers Conference, Seminar & Sales Promation 3,532.49 2,147.13 1,584.99
Directors' Remuneration 324.00 240.00 220.00
Director Sitting Fees a.00 2.00 1.25
Charity & Donation - - -
Subscription & Membership Fees - 0.15 0.20
Electrical Charges & Expenses 147.86 132.01 85.34
Filing Fees 0.46 37.95 0.32
Insurance 73.73 62.84 54.35
Internal Audit Fee 4.50 4.10 -
Provision for debtors Impairment - 27.20 53.29
Loss On Sale Of Fixed Assets 1.25 - -
Computer & Internet Expenses 47.03 22.93 27.79
Miscellaneous Expenses 20.85 31.20 29.39
Dffice Maintenance 32.18 6.78 7.78
Postage, Telegram & Telephanes ' 35.17 37.32 34.26
Printing & Stationery b.73 5.88 4.97
Professional & Consultancy Charges 70.66 92.14 121.11
Rate & Taxes 2217 9.81 14.01
Fair Value Gain on Shares 0.07
Rent 490.64 390.04 228.21
Royalty Paid - 18.96 -
Repair & Maintenance 195.10 178.55 154.10
Security Service Charges 78.49 62.90 51.86
Channel Finance Brokerage Charges - - 4.66
Share depository charges 0.42
Sundry Balance Adjustment (Net) - 0.20 0.02
Ipo expense 95.27
Transportation , Loading & Unloading Charges 3,107.59 2,853.00 2,709.87
Travelling & Conveyance 252.74 327.76 253.91
Interest On Tax 1.61 28.75 12.34
Loss from Partnership Firm - -
Fair Market Value Loss on Investments - - 0.01
Vehicle Maintenance 47.52 48.82 44.58
Contribution to C5R 96.92 50.22 44.06
Installation Service for Door & Window 136.80 112.38 63.47
Total 8,926.32 7,029.70 5,894.16
Total Other Expenses ; 9,916.30 7,880.40 6,333.05




BMW VENTURES LIMITED

Address : 15T FLOOR, MONA CINEMA COMPLEX EAST GANDHI MAIDAN, PATNA, BIHAR - B00004

37 Earning per share

Total profit for the year
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each [Nos)*
EPS - Basic and Diluted { per share in Rs.]

Notes to Financial Statement

{Rs in lzkhs, unless stated otherwise)

*Weighted Average number of shares calculated after considering Sub-Division of Shares at August 06, 2022 and bonus shares issued asat 20-03-2024.

18 Canti Iiatil & Capital G "

a. Contingent liabilities

C Liabilities not provided for in respect of: Guarantees, Undertakings & Letter of Credit
The Company has given Comfart Letter for BMW Enterprises for credit facility to Bandhan Bank, Patna,
The Company has given Corporate Guarantes for BMW Enterprises for credit facility to Punjab National Bank, Patna,

b. Capital Commimants

For Purchase of Land at Purnia

39 Corporate Social Responsibility

3. amaunt required to be spent by the company during the year
b. amount of expenditure incurred

. (Shortfall)/ Excess at the end of the year

d. Opening Excess Balance

d. Excess amount carnied forward to next year

e tatal of current year shortfall

40 Employee benefits
8} Description of the type of the plan
fit Plan - Gr.

C

1] an - . death ar

Period ended Period ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
3,282.33 2,993.54 3,265.85
6,33,15,000.00 6,33,15,000.00 6,33,15,000.00
5.18 4.73 5.16
— e
Period ended Period ended Year ended
315t March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
i - 3,000.00
5,745.00 5,745.00 7
5,745.00 5,745.00 3,000.00
o s e
Period ended Period ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
18.40
- 18.40 =
=
Period ended Period ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
85.48 76.82 62.50
96.92 50.22 44.06
11.44 (26.60) (18.44)
1.80 28.40 46.83
1.80 28.40

13.24

Post-Employment Benefits plan defined in a(ii) and a(ili) abave typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: Salary increase, Discount rate, Marality and Disability and withdrawals

a] Salary Increases - Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability, Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

b) Discount Rate '~ Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

€) Martality & disability - Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower ar higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.
d) wit = Actual withd, proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan's liability.

b) The following tables set out the status of the gratuity plan,

(s financial sta

The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days of total basic salary Iast drawn far each completed year of service. Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the
i + in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

Asat As at Asat
i benefit obii
| Change in benefit obligations 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 41193 366.72 234.01
Interest Cost 29.87 27.50 17,55
Current Service Cost 69.41 6047 55.48
Expected return on Planned assets
Benefits Payment from Planned Assets (6.54) (3.99) 15.94)
Benefit Payment Directly by Employer
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on cbligation (9.53) (38.77) 65.62
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 495.14 411.93 366.72
ii} Fair Value of Plan Assets 42571 286.08 23578
fii} Net Assets/(Liability) (ii-i) [65.43) {125.86) (130.94)
As at Asat As at
A tr ised in Profit and
i atyretsnd Laes 31st March 2025 31stMarch2024  31stMarch 2023
Service cost 29.87 27.50 17.55
Net Interest cost 69.41 60.47 55.48
Actuarial (gain) /Inss for the year [20.03) {17.09) {11.73)
Expense recognized in the Income Statement 79.25 70.88 61.29
: Asat As at As at
Ami i I
vy Aount vecognized In.Other Comprehenitioe thoome: (0C) 315t March 2025 31stMarch2024 31t March 2023
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) for the year an Projected Benefit Obligation 11.17 39.53 {66.51)
Expense recognized in the income Statement 1117 39.53 {66.51)
N As at As at As at
i} Principal A 1
W Erinps T AS o 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
1) Discount rate {p.a.) 7.00% 7.25% 7.50%
i} Future salary increase (p.a.) 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
As at As at Asat
viik Damographlc Assuinpdons 315t March 2025 31stMarch 2024 31st March 2023
i) Retirement age 60 years &0 years &0 years
H} Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability TALM 2012-14 IaLM 2012-14 |ALM 201214
lii] Withdrawal Rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%




wvili) Sensitivity Analysis of the Defined Benefit Obligation

As at As at As at

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Impact of the change In discount rate
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 495.14 411.93 366.72
Impact due to increaze of 1.00% 44512 37176 33059
Impact due to decrease of 1.00% 555.47 460,28 410,53
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation 25 at the end of the period 495.14 411.93 366.72
Impact due to increase of 1.00% 553.08 458,49 408.02
Impact due to decrease of 1.00% 445.96 37235 330.84
Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not caloulated,
Sensitivities as 1o rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Qbligation s
31st March 2023
01 Apr 2022 to 31 Mar 2023 4378
D1 Apr 2023 to 31 Mar 2024 16.49
01 Apr 2024 to 31 Mar 2025 645
01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2026 525
01 Apr 2026 Onwards 283.42
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation Asan
31st March 2024
01 Apr 2024 to 31 Mar 2025 58.51
01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2026 1171
01 Apr 2026 1o 31 Mar 2027 5.98
01 Apr 2027 to 31 Mar 2028 14.19
01 Apr 2028 ta 31 Mar 2029 9.02
D1 Apr 2025 Onwards 31253
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation Aswt
31st March 2025
01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2026 65.98
01 Apr 2026 to 31 Mar 2027 8.29
01 Apr 2027 to 31 Mar 2028 15.85
01 Apr 2028 to 31 Mar 2029 11.29
01 Apr 2029 to 31 Mar 2030 6.05
01 Apr 2030 Cnwards 386.69
41 Related Party Transactions
In accardance with the requirement of IndAS 24 on Related Parties notified under the Companies {Indian ing Standards) Rules, 2015, the name of related parties where control exists and / or with whom transactions have

taken place during the year and description of

a) List of related parties and nature of relationship where control exists:

Key Managerial Personnel
Bijay Kumar Kishorepuria
Neitin Rishorepurla

Rachna Kishorepuria
Sabita devi Kishorepuria
Rahul Kumar

Ruchika Maheshwari
Birendra kumar

Sourabh Ajmera

Ravi Jagetiya

Arpit Jagdishchandra Kabra
Yogesh Tulsyan

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
Bijay Kumar kishorepuria (HUF)
Nupur Singhania

Entity over which significant influence is exercised by the C
BMW Enterprise (A Unit of Jal Basukinath Traders Pyt Ltd)

lai Basukinath Traders Pvt Ltd
BMW Logistics pvt Itd
lagdamba Value Steels Pvi Ltd
BMW Project Pyt Ltd

Rachna Helghts Pvt Ltd

Nupur Heights Pvt Ltd

Ridhi Sidhi Fincon Private Limited
Mediversal Healthcare Pyt Ltd
IBT Real Estate Developers LLP
IBT Realty LLP

BMW Hardware & Stes|

BMW Fin Invest Private Limited
BMW Vyapar Put Ltd

| and by the Management are:
Designation
Director
Managing Director
Director

Non-Executive Director

Company Secretary till 10 May, 2023
Company Secretary Fram 15 May, 2023
Chief Financial Cfficer

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Nature of Relationship
Director is KARTA of HUF
Daughter of Director

v/key B p (either indivi ¥ or with others)



b} Transactions with the related parties for the year ended

. Entity over which
Particulars Nature of Transaction Kay Manegerinl Relatives of KMP  significant influence
Personnel
is exercised
For Perlod Ended as on 31st March, 2025
Bijay Kumar Kishorepuria Remunaration 120.00 =
Bijay Kumar Kishorepuria Rent Paid 13178 = 5
Nitin Kishorepuria Remunaration 144.00
Nitin Kisharepuria Rent Paid 162.75 = =
Rachna Kisharepuria Rent Paid 4290 - -
Rachna Kishorepuria Remuneration B0.00 =
Sabita devi Kishorepuria Rent Paid £7.28 “
Sabita devi Kishorepuria Director Sitting Fees 1.20
Bijay kimar kishorepuria (HUF) Rent Paid 9.60 =
Ruchika Maheshwari Kejriwal Remunaration 778
Birendra Kumar Remunaration 10.80
Sourabh Ajmera Director Sitting Fees 170
Ravi lagetiya Director Sitting Fees 170
Arpit Jagdishchandra Kabra Director Sitting Fees 170
Yogesh Tulsyan Director Sitting Fees 170
Nupur Kishorepuria Sales 0.02 -
BMW Enterprise Sales 8,181.15
BMW Enterprise Storage,Bending, Loading & Unloading Services Praovided 155.63
BMW Enterprise Purchase 253,01
Jai Basukinath Traders Pvt Ltd Storage,Bending, Loading & Unloading Services Provided 217.32
Iai Basukinath Traders Put Ltd Rent Paid 65.13
BMW Logistics pvt htd Transportation Services Provided 1,217.82
BMW Logistics pvt ftd Sales - 0.70
BMW Logistics pvt td Establishment Charges Received * 1Lo6
lagdamba Value Steels Pvt Ltd Rent Paid - 42.48
Jagdamba Value Steels Pvt Ltd Establishment Charges Recelved 0.28
Mediversal Healthcare Pt Ltd Medical Services Availed for Staff - 279
BMW Hardware B Steel Sales 383.15
BMW Hardware & Steel Storage,Bending, Loading & Unloading Services Provided 23.18
BMW Hardware & Steel Capital Contribution 100.00
BMW Hardware & Steel Establishment Charges Recelved 0.14
EMW Project Pyt Ltd Establishment Charges Received 0.14
Nupur Heights Private Limited Establishment Charges Recelved 0.14
Rachna Heights Private Limited Establishment Charges Received . - 0.28
BT Real Estate Developers LLP Establishment Charges Received 0.14
IBT Realty LLP Establish Charges R | i = 0.28
Ridhi sidhi Fincen Private Limited Establishment Charges Received - - 0.28
BMW Fin Invest Private Limited Establishment Charges Received 0.28
BMW Vyapar Pvt Ltd Sales 27250
BMW Vyapar Pyt Ltd Purchase - - 7291
Taotal 784.85 0.02 10,990.81
£ Pi n n
Bijay Kumar Kishorepuria Remunaration 120.00 - -
Bijay Kumar Kishorepuria Rent Paid 11295 - -
Hijay Kumar Kishorepuria Loan Taken 240.00 - -
Bijay Kumar Kishorepuria Interest Paid 4.30 - -
Bijay Kumar Kishorepuria Loan Repaid 240.00 - =
Nitin Kisharepuria Remunaration 120,00 - -
Nitin Kishorepuria Rent Paid 139.50 . -
Rachna Kisharepuria Rent Faid 36.77 - -
Sabita devi Kishorepuna Rent Paid B1.89 - -
Sabita devi Kishorepuria Loan Taken 30.00 ¥ -
5abita devi Kishorepuria Loan Repaid 30.00 - -
Sabita devi Kishorepuria Interest Paid 112 - -
Rahul Kumar Remuneration 1.01 - -
Ruchika Maheshwari Kejriwal Remunaration 6.05 - -
Birendra kumar Remunaration 10.80 - -
Seurabh Ajmera Director Sitting Fess 0.50 - -
Ravl lagetiya Director Sitting Fees 0.50 - -
Arpit Jagdishchandra Kabra Director Sitting Fees 0.50 -
Yogesh Tulsyan Director Sitting Fees 0.50 =
Bijay Kumar kisharepuria [HUF] Rent Paid - 10.48 -
BMW Enterprise Sales - - 3,448.23
BMW Enterprise Purchase - - 202.49
BMW Enterprise Storage,Bending, Loading & Unleading Services Provided - - 167.97
BMW Enterprise Material Aeceived - - 30243
Jai Basukinath Traders Pwt Ltd Storage,Bending, Loading & Unloading Services Pravided B - 292.16
Jal Basukinath Traders Pvt Ltd Rent Aeceived - - 234
BMW Logistics pwt ftd Establishment Charges = - 1.06
BMW Logistics pvt ltd Transportation Charges - - 1,034.44
BMW Logistics put ftd Sales = = 0.59
BMW Fin Invest Private Limited Establishment Charges - - 0.28
BMW Fin Invest Private Limited Loan Taken - - B5.00
BMW Fin Invest Private Limited Loan Repaid - B5.00
BMW Fin Invest Private Limited Interest Paid - 0.75
Jagdamba Value Steels Pvt Ltd Rent Paid - 47.a8
Jagdamba Value Steels Pvt Ltd Establishment Charges - - 0.28
Jagdamba Value Steels Pyt Ltd Material Transfer - - 0,62
EMW Project Pvt Ltd Establishment Charges - - 014
Rachna Heights Put (td Establishment Charges - - 0.28
Nupur Heights Pvt Ltd Establishment Charges - - 0.28
Mediversal Healtheare Pyt Ltd Medical Services Availed for Staff - - 11.00
BMW Hardware & Steel Capital Contribution - - 30.50
BMW Hardware & Steel Sales - - 182,64
BMW Hardware & Steel Establishment Charges - Q.14
BMW Hardware & Steel Storage,Bending, Loading & Unloading Services Provided - - 5.45
BMW Hardware & Steel Purchase - - 367
Ridhi Sidhi Fincan Private Limited Establishment Charges - - 0.28
IBT Realty LLP Lean Given - - 536.51
IBT Realty LLP Loan Repaid - - 536.51
BT Realty LLP Interest Received - - 11.23
BMW Vyapar Pyt Ltd Sales - 412.46
BMW Vyapar Pvt Ltd Purchase - - 221.86
Tatal 1,176.40 10.48 7,743.16



EOR Y N
Bijay Kumar Kishorepuria

Bijay Kumar Kishorepuria

Nitin Kisharepuria

Nitin Kishorepuria

Rachna Kishorepuria

Rachna Kishorepuria

Sabita devi Kishorepuria

Rahul Kumar

Birendra Kumar

Bijay Kumar kishorepuria {HUF)
BEMW Enterprise

BMW Enterprise

Remuneration
Rent
Remuneration
Rent
Rent
Remuneration
Rent
Remuneration
Remuneration
Rent
Sales

Purchase

tiorage Bedding, Load(ig & Unbading SarvicesProvided:

120.00
94.13
80.00

116,25
30.64
20,00
26.94

3.07

EMW Enterprise Purchase ef Machinery * s
EMW Enterprise Discount Given ( Credit Note - B.04
Jai Basukinath Traders Pyt Ltd Storage Bending, Loading & Unloading Services Provided - 426.72
Jai Basukinath Traders Pvt Ltd Fent Paid 13.26
Jai Basukinath Traders Pvt Ltd Sales 263
BMW Logistics pvt Itd Establishment Charges Received - 106
EMW Logisties pvt Itd Establishment Charges Received 929.72
EMW Logistics pvt Itd Sales 0.51
BMW Fin Invest Private Limited Establishment Charges Received 0.35
Jagdamba Value Steels Pvt Ltd Rent - - 4248
Jagdamba Value Steels Pvt Ltd Establishment Charges Received - - 035
Jagdamba Value Steels Pvt Ltd Service Bil Received (Purnea Godown Rent Paid) - - 234
EMW Project Pvt Lid li Charges R d - 0.21
Rachna Heights Pyt Ltd hlisk Charges R d 0.35
Nupur Heights Pvt Ltd Establishment Charges Received - 0.35
Mediversal Healthcare Put Ltd Advance - 214
BMW Hardware & Steel Advance - BE.16
BMW Hardware & Steel Sales - 43.81
EMW Hardware & Steel Establishment Charges Received * - 0.14
EMW Hardware & Steel Storage, ding, Loading & Unloading Services Provided - 3.00
EMW Hardware & Steel Purchase . . b6.66
Ridhi Sidhi Fincon Private Limited Establishment Charges Received - 0.35
Ridhi Sidhi Fincon Private Limited Unsecured Loan Received - - 250.00
Ridhi Sidhi Fincon Private Limited Unsecured Loan Paid - - 250.00
Ridhi Sidhi Fincon Private Limited Interest Paid - - 5.15
BMW Height Pyt Ltd Establishment Charges Received - 0.14
BMW Vyapar Put Lid Purchase - - 226.74
Total ] 506.15 9.60 4,698.34
*Related Party Transactions include indirect taxes, wherever applicable
¢} Detall of Outstanding Balances are as follows:-
Key Managerial ntives of kP EllTy uve.r :.mlch
P
Particulars ersoninal is exercised
As on 31st March, 2025
BMW Logistics pwt fed = = {102.96}
Sourabh Ajmera (1.08) .
Ravi Jagetiya {1.08)
Arpit Jagdishchandra Kabra (1.08)
Yogesh Tulsyan {1.08)
Sabita devi Kishorepuria (1.08) -
Jagdamba Value Steels Pvi Ltd (Security Depaosit) - 433.00
BMW Hardware & Steel 207.14
BMW Vyapar Pvit Ltd - 0.37
(5.40] - 537.55

As on 31st March 2024
BMW Enterprise (A Unit of Jai Basukinath Traders Pyt Ltd) - 36.27
BMW Logistics put Itd - - (249.41)
lagdamba Value Steels Pvt Ltd - 433.00
BMW Vyapar Pyt Ltd - 0.16
BMW Hardware & Steel - 137.37
Total - 357.38
As on 31st March 2023
BMW Logistics pvt Itd - {74.42)
BMW Vyapar Pvt Ltd 0.05
lagdamba Value Steels Pvt Ltd 450.00
Total 375.62




42 Financial instruments

Fair value measurements
Following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities:

As at Asat As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
FVTPL Amortised Cast FVTPL Amaortised Cost FVTPL Amartised Cost
Financial Assets
Investment 145.40 207.14 68.42 106.92 4492 76.52
Trade Receivables - 15,411.18 - 14,100.29 - 10,993.34
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 1,243.43 - 52.86 - 27.94
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents - 378.61 - 38774 - -
Loans and advances - 2.574.31 - 267243 - 48.46
Other Financial Assets - 190.82 - 137.00 - 526.64
149.40 21,005.48 68.42 17,457.24 44,92 11,672.50
Current 149.40 20,814.66 68.42 17,320.24 44,92 11,146.26
Non-Current 190.82 137.00 526.64
Financial Liabilities
Barrowings 42,83855 39,529.66 - 2B,358.44
Lease liabilities . = G 478,38
Trade Payables 30.83 2,387.48 B 527.77
Other Financial Liabilities 1.497.73 1,015.66 - 1,806.51
' 44,367.10 42,932.80 - 31,121.20
Current 41,212.91 38,408.84 26,582.33
Non-Current 3,154.20 4,523.96 4,538.87

Fair Value hierarchy

The foliowing tables shows the levels in the fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabiliti

Fair value Measurement

Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3
As at 31st March 2025
Financial Assets
Investment in Quoted Equity Shares a.04 -
Investment in Partnership Firm - & 207.14
Investment in Gold 149.36 - -
149.40 B 207.14
As at 31st March 2024
Financial Assets
Investment in Quoted Equity Shares 011 - -
Investment in Partnership Firm = = 106,92
Investment in Gold 68.31 + -
68.42 = 106.92
As at 31st March 2023
Financial Assets
Investment in Quoted Equity Shares 0.08 = -
Investment in Partnership Firm - 76.5
Investment in Gold 44,85 - -
0.08 - 76.52

43 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(a)

The Campany's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, security deposits, trade and other payables, etc. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal
financial assets include trade receivable, security deposit, cash and cash equivalents, etc. that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The B owversees the m af these risks. The management is responsible for formulating an appropriate financial risk governance framewark for
the Company and periodically reviewing the same, The management ensures that financial risks are identified 1 and in accardance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives, The management reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below,

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financizl instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: Interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and Equity
price risk.

{il Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Since the Company has borrowings based on fixed rate and floating rate, therefore
Company is exposed Lo such risk an borrowings with floating rates.

Sensitivity Analysis of the Interest Rate Aot Asag peat

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Impact of the change in Interest rate
Interest cost for the reporting Period 3,751.598 2,749.66 2,011.30
Impact due to increase/Decrease of 1.00% 428.39 395.30 283.58

il Foraign Currency Risk
The indian Rupee [s the Company’s most significant currency. As a o e, the Ct s results are in Indian Rupee and exposures are managed against Indian Rupee di
fareign transaction hence, company does not have any fareign currency risk.

The ¥ i not exp i to any

iil) Equity Price Risk
The fair value of sorme of the Company's investments measured at fair value through statemem of Profit and loss exposes the Company Lo equily price risks, These investments are subject to changes in the market price of securities

e e - e ¥ . e T Ak e it I E =




Asat Asat As at
i hi vestm
Senstthity Analyily of the Equiy investment 31st March 2025 31stMarch 2024 31st March 2023
Impact of the change in Equity Price
Interest cost for the reporting Pericd 0.04 011 0.08
Impact due to Increase/Decrease of 10.00% 0.00 001 0.01
Total invetsment value 0.05 0.12 0.08
(b] Credit Risk
The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Trade receivables 16,411.18 14,100.29 10,993.34
Other financial assets 150.82 13700 526.64

Credit risk is the risk of fi

loss to the C yifac

or counterparty to a financial instrument fails ta meet its contractual obligations.

Credit risk arises mainly from loans, trade receivables and financial assets. The Company maintains a defined credit policy and maonitors the exposures to these credit risks on an on-going basis.

On adoption of nd AS 108, the Company uses expected credit loss madel to assess the impairment loss or gain, Based an internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/ current facts available in relation ta default
and delays in collection thereof, the expected credit loss for trade receivables has been provided which has been in note 10 of the financial Statements.

ial assets the

The carrying amount of fi
assessment as low,

(c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled b
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due,

Company's reputation,

The fo[lcmigg are the cantractual maturities of the financial |ia bilities, in ciud_iﬂg estimated interest payments as at 31st March 2025:

credit exposure. The Campany manitors credit risk very closely both in domestic and expart market, The Management impact analysis shows credit risk and impact

v delivering cash or ancther financial asset. The Company's approach to managing
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking da mage to the

Contractual Cash Flows

Carrying
amount o &3 # Total
year years years
Borrowings 42,838.55 39,719.35 3,119.20 = 42,838.55
Trade Payables 30.83 30.83 . - 30.83
Cther Financial Liabllities 1,462.73 1,462.73 - - 1,462.73
Total 44,332.10 41,212.81 3,115.20 - 44,332.10
The following are the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments as at 315t March 2024:
Contractual Cash Flows
Carrying o1 15 >
amount Total
year years years
Barrowings 39,529.66 35,025.70 4,503.96 39,529.66
Trade Payables 2,387.48 2,387.48 - 2,387.48
Other Financial Liabilities 99566 395 66 - 995,66
Total 42,912.80 38,408.84 4,503.96 - 42,512.80
The following are the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments as at 31st March 2023:
C | Cash Flows
Ayns 01 1-5 5
amount 7 > Total
year years years
Borrowings 28,358.44 24,212.85 4,145.49 - 28,358.44
Trade Payables 527.77 527,77 - - 52177
DOther Financial Liabilities 1,781.61 1,781.61 = = 178161
Total 30,667.82 26,522.33 4,145.45 - 30.667.82
44 Capital management
The management policy is to maintain a strong capital base so 2 to maintain invester and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the b . The Ci 5 manitor the return an capital
employed,
The Following table summarize the capital of the Company
As at As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Short Term Debt 39,715.35 35,025.70 24,212.95
Long Term Debt 3,1158.20 4,503 95 4,145.49
Total Debt 42,B38.55 35,529.66 28,358.44
Equity 21,011.78 18,670.81 15,647.70
Total Capital 63,850.33 58,200.48 44,006.13
45 Additional v Inf
a. Ratio
As at fAsat As at
Ratio Numerator Denominator 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current Ratia (In times} Total current assets Total current liabilities 1.2405% 1.2673 134
Debt Equity Ratio (In times) Debt consists of barrowings and lease liabilities, Total equity 2.04 212 1.84
Debt service coverage ratic {in times) Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit before taxes + Debt service = Interest 1.72 1.74 242
Depreciation and Amortization + Interest and lease payments <
Principal repayments
Return on equity ratio (in %) Prefit for the year less Preference dividend (if any) Average total equity 16.54% 17.45% 23.26%
Inventary Turnover Ratio [in times) Cost of Good Sold Average Inventory 588 6.38 1574
Trade recelvables turnover ratio {in times) Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 1352 1545 18,52
Net capital turnover ratio (in times) Revenue from operations Average working capital 19.38 18.97 25.47
\l.e Tetal current assets
less Total current
liabilities]
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Additional Regulatory Information

Details of Benami Property held
The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

Details of Loans and advances

The company has not granted any loans and advances to prometers, directars, key managerial personnel (KMPs) and the related parties which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

Wilful Defaulter

The company has not been declared as a wilful Defaulter by any Financial Institution or bank as at the date of Balance Shest.

Relationship with Struck off Companies

The company has not granted any loans and advances to promaters, directars, key managerial parsonnal (KMPs) and the related parties which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of

repayment.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies [ROC)
The company has no pending charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the ROC beyond the Statutory period.

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The company has complied with the provision of the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

Compliance with app i Scheme(s) of Arrang t
There are no Schemes of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Discrepancy in utilization of borrowings
The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date. There are no discrepancy in utilization of borrowing,

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

{A) The company has nat advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds er share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries).

(B) the company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party).

The company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including fareign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall:a] directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); orb) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:a)
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans ar entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;b) provide any guarantee, security ar the like on
behalf ef the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Additional Information
Undisclosed income
The Company has no transaction that is not recarded In the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as,

search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to confirm current year's presentation.

As per our Report of even date annexed For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For A DV & ASSOCIATES BMW VENTURES LIMITED
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.-128045W

« Ui vl

Pratik Kabra Director
Partner DIN:-00626283 DIN:- 00626377
Membership No. : 611401

o Ruchilla,  Mahe hos w (Mo e

Date:-27-08-2025

Ruchika Maheshwari Birendra Yadav
Company Secretary Chief Financial officer
Mem No: F12976 PAN:AJIPK7925P



